
 
 

 

Victorian History of Moston 

 
 

Title The Croft, Plant Lane, Elton 

Type Cottage & Land 

Date Produced 18th Nov 2024 

Internal Reference E29P 

1840 Owner Lord Crewe 

1840 Occupier Joseph Brown 

Tithe Map Apportionments 106, 107, 116, 124, 163 

1840 Area 5.24 acres 
 

 

 
The Croft, Mid 1990’s 

 

 
The Croft 2022 

  



 
 

On the 1840 tithe map, for some reason there isn’t a building marked on the map but the apportionment 

description clearly states that Joseph Brown was living in a house there. He was also renting just over 5 

acres of moss in the surrounding area for which he paid an annual rent of ten pounds. 

Joseph was born in 1776, to Richard Brown, a tenant on the Lord Crewe Estate and he himself also took 

out a tenancy in 1825 at the property currently known as “The Croft” on Plant Lane 

 

 

 



 
 

 

John Warton would be a relative probably her son from a previous marriage of Hannah whos maiden name 

he shared. In the 1851 census, Joseph was recorded as a Greenwich Pensioner which would confirm that 

his spent his early life in the navy. Perhaps that was the reason Joseph and Hannah never appeared to have 

any children of their own. 

 

 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Rent Books 1846-1856 

 
Joseph lived at “The Croft” 
as it is now known from 
1825 until 1852 when he 
moved out, and the new 
tenant to take his place was 
Charles Lewis.  
 
This move will have 
coincided with the death of 
Joseph’s wife Hannah who 
was buried at Warmingham 
on 4th January 1852. Joseph 
himself moved to Ettiley 
Heath where he died seven 
years later at a grand age 
for the time. 
 

 

 
Source : Elworth St Peter burials 1859 



 
 

Charles Lewis was originally from about a mile down the road being the son of John Lewis of Oakwood 

Farm on Oakwood Lane (see M16P). He married in Coppenhall in the early 1840’s before moving back to 

Elton where he lived on Booth Lane before taking up residence at The Croft.  

 
 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Rentals 1856-1873 
 

 

As a local joiner, Charles will have been a close 
acquaintance of Joseph Turner of Ivy House, 100m 
down the road, indeed they were possibly business 
partners to the extent that Joseph was also an 
executor of his will. 
 
Joseph had a bad year in 1861 losing his daughter 
aged 15 then a few months later, his wife also died. 
Joseph died in 1867 and left £200 to his second wife 
Margaret who stayed on at The Croft til 1871 until she 
died. By then, his younger son John reached the age of 
21 and could inherit his fathers wealth. 
 
The contents of his will also showed his involvement in 
the building trade as he left 2 houses to his elder son 
Thomas & the instruction that two more should be 
built on his land in Bradwall for his younger son John. 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Son after Margaret Lewis died, here stepson John moved out and went to live in Crewe where he 

continued the trade of his father and continued to build his own little empire of properties. The new 

tenant to move in was Adam Lowe who came Elton originally from High Offley in Staffordshire where he 

progressed from being an agricultural labourer to a farmer having his own land to tend. As with the Lewis’s 

before him, his rent to Lord Crewe continued at ten pounds per annum.  

 

 
 

 
At the time of his move to The Croft, Adam 
Lowe was already in Cheshire residing in 
Ettiley Heath. His youngest son Henry was 
born there suggesting he moved about 1866-
67. Adam was then a bricklayer so again I 
would be surprised if he wasn’t acquainted 
with Joseph Turner in some way. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

During their time at Elton, Adam and Louisa raised 9 children, the majority of whom stayed in the area so 

they will have been a well known family locally. 

 



 
 

 

Source : National Archives 1901 census 

 

Source : National Archives 1911 census 

 

 
Name 
 

 
Years Lived 

 
Place Lived 

 
Occupation 

James 1858-1885 Moston House Farm, Oakwood Lane, Moston. Agricultural Labourer 

Charlotte 1861-1941 Higher Delacres Farm, Booth Lane, Kinderton Farmers Wife 

Annie 1863-1935 Plant Lane, Moston Labourers Wife 

Henry 1866-1933 Moss House, Plant Lane, Elton Farmer 

Henrietta 1871-1945 Kingston, Herefordshire Cook 

John 1873-1910? Rangatira, Plant Lane, Moston Market Gardener 

Clara 1876-? The Croft, Plant Lane, Elton Dress Maker 

Jessie 1878-1938 Marsh Green Road, Elworth Housewife 

Lucy 1880-1927 Ormskirk, Lancashire Housewife 

 

As the First World War came along, Hungerford Crewe who was now spending little time in Cheshire, 

decided to sell his estate. As with many of the great landowners at the time, it was becoming increasingly 

difficult to make a profit from agricultural land and a mass sale of property took off around this time. 

The Elton part of the Estate was first put up for sale in 1915 but much of it, including almost all the 

properties along Plant Lane, Watch Lane and Red Lane failed to sell. 

It can be seen from the sale map that the land occupied by Adam Lowe was very similar to that in the 1825 

lease to Joseph Brown and was still roughly 5 acres. A small field of nearly one acre was by then part of 

Elton Farm and a small patch was now with Moss House Farm.  

In the sale, the property was split into two separate lots perhaps to reflect the fact that the fields weren’t 

all adjacent to each other. 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Sale Brochure 1915 

 

 
 

 

 

Adam Lowe at this time also leased a field just south 
of Watch Lane (Opposite the junction with Red Lane) 
which meant at the time of the sale he and his son 
Henry were farming roughly 17 acres between them. 
This can be seen in the Congleton Borough Council 
rates return. This field was sold as a separate lot. After 
Adam Lowe died, this field passed to Wesley Turner of 
Ivy House Farm further down Plant Lane by the canal 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Source ~: Congleton Borough Council Rates 1914 

 



 
 

 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 3rd August 1918 

 

At the 1918 auction, the Elton part 
of the estate was withdrawn before 
the auction and then sold to Mr F J 
Poole (now Poole Alcock Solicitors) 
who in general sold the properties 
back to the tenants with no doubt a 
nice markup in price for his own cut 
 

 

In 1918, the organisation of the land and properties had been significantly adjusted into a more logical 

fashion and perhaps to reflect that Mr Poole had already agreed with the tenants how to split up the land 

and who wanted what. At that time Adam Lowe’s next door neighbour was his son Henry Lowe and I am 

sure this would be the driver to combine the two properties into a single lot which was then sold to Henry 

Lowe with completion on 10th April 1919. The purchase price being £665 which was part funded with a 

mortgage of £400 from Francis Poole, Annie Foden and a James Proudlove of Fields Farm Bradwall.  

 

 
Source : Crewe Estate Sale Brochure 1918 

 

 
 

 

 
 Source : MI Warmingham  

 
Unfortunately, this arrangement didn’t work out as intended because 
between the original sale and completion, on 27th January 1919, Adam 
Lowe passed away and was buried at Warmingham Church. 
 
On the other hand, by this time Adam was a very elderly gentleman and 
perhaps knew his time on this earth was limited and wanted to secure this 
one off opportunity to pass the property on to his son. 
 
So no sooner had Henry Lowe purchased The Croft, or “Pear Tree Cottage” 
as it was known by at the time, he needed to decide what to do with it.  
 



 
 

 

 

Source : Runcorn Guardian 2nd May 1919 

 

Henry Lowe continued to occupy the 
premises up until 1931 when he put the 
Moss House up for sale which included 
The Croft. The purchaser was a James 
Ernest Davies, a builder who lived on the 
Wirral. The Croft was soon after sold to 
James Chadwick (Moss House being sold 
to Ellen Barnes).  
 

It is likely that at this time, The Croft was 
demolished and rebuilt at a later date. 
as the bungalows on the far side of Plant 
Lane.  
 

Although it retained the Pear Tree 
Cottage name, it was also named 14 
Plant Lane. There is no entry for the 
1921 census and Henry Lowe was paying 
rates for the land at that time. 
 

In addition, in the 1931 sale, James 
Davies paid £925 for the combined Moss 
House but sold Moss House and 4 acres 
the next day for £750. This would 
suggest what was left was just land 
value. 
 

 

 

 

Source : Crewe Chronicle 2nd Nov 1935 

 

 

 

Source : National Register 1939 

 



 
 

 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 17th Aug 1940 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 31st Aug 1940 

 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 30th May 1953 
 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 29th Oct 1955         

  
 Source :  Nantwich Chronicle 1st March 1958 
 

 
Source : Crewe Chronicle 1st May 1965 
   

 

 

 
The Croft OS Map 2022 

 
The Croft continued as a poultry farm small 
holding of 2.5 acres for many years but the 
property itself was extended many times for 
its original 2 bedrooms to the substantial 
property it is today. 
 
In addition, to the day the property occupies 
about 5 acres of land after the then owners 
(Probably in the late 1970s) purchased an 
additional field at the back of Watch Lane 
Cottage) 



 
 

Chronological List of Owners and Occupiers 

 

 

 


